
 



Table of Contents 
 

  

 Page 

 
Agenda for May 8, 2023, Regular Meeting 

 
3 

  
Minutes for April 10, 2023, Regular Meeting 6 
  
Minutes for May 1, 2023, Special Meeting 20 
  
Supplemental Information for May 8, 2023, Regular Meeting 26 

 
 

 
 



Lake Land College 
Board of Trustees 

District No. 517 
Engaging minds, changing lives, through the power of learning. 

Regular Meeting No. 677 

Monday, May 8, 2023, 6:00 p.m.  

Board and Administration Center, Room 011, Mattoon 

Agenda 

I. Routine.

A. Call to Order.

B. Roll Call.

C. Consent Items.
(Any one member may remove an item from the consent item list simply by requesting

the Chair to do so.  Items removed will be discussed and voted immediately following

passage of the consent item.)

1. Approval of Minutes of April 10, 2023, Regular Meeting.

2. Approval of Minutes of April 10, 2023, Closed Session.

3. Approval of Minutes of May 1, 2023 Special Meeting.

4. Approval of Agenda of May 8, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting.

5. Bills for Payment and Travel Expenses.

For summary and details of bills refer to:
https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/board-of-trustees/

6. Destruction of Tape Recording of November 8, 2021 Closed Session, and

November 4, 2021 Buildings and Site Committee Closed Session.

II. Hearing of Citizens, Faculty and Staff.

Board Book Page 3

https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/board-of-trustees/


Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Agenda – May 8, 2023 
Page 2 

III. Committee Reports.

A. ICCTA/Legislative Ms. Denise Walk 

Mr. Gary Cadwell 

B. Resource & Development Mr. Gary Cadwell 

C. Finance Mr. Dave Storm 

D. Buildings & Site Mr. Kevin Curtis 

E. Foundation Mr. Tom Wright 

F. Student Report Ms. Maggie Kelly 

G. President’s Report Dr. Josh Bullock 

IV. Business Items.

A. Non-Action Items.

Board Book 
Page 

Number(s) 
1. Monthly Data Point Discussion – Employee Demographics.
2. Faculty Focus on Advancing Student Success - Fulfilling the

College’s Mission through the Library.
3. Appointment of Board Committees.
4. Navigator News Awards. 26 
5. Proposed Revisions to Board Policies:

 06.18.01 - Credit through State Seal of Biliteracy

 06.16.01 - Credit for Military Service

 07.01.02 - Special Admission and Graduation
Requirements

27-32

6. Calendar of Events. 33-34

B. Action Items.

Board Book 
Page 

Number(s) 
35-47

48
1. Acceptance of March 2023 Financial Statements.
2. Continued Employment of Grant Funded Employees.
3. Acceptance of Gift-in-Kind Donation from the Lake Land College 

Foundation.
4. Approval of 2023-2024 College-Wide Committees. 49-55

Board Book Page 4



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Agenda – May 8, 2023 
Page 3 

5. Approval of Bid for Preventive Maintenance and Air Filter
Replacements.

56-57

6. Approval of Purchase of IT Related Equipment for Server Room.
7. Approval of Agreement with Dimond Bros. for Insurance

Consulting Services.
58-66

8. Closed Session.
Pursuant to Chapter 5 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes Section
120/2(c)(1) and (2), closed session is called to discuss the
appointment, employment, compensation, performance,
discipline or dismissal of specific employees of the College and to
discuss collective negotiating matters.

[Return to Open Session -  Roll Call] 

9. Approval of the Three-Year Contract and Related MOU with the
Lake Land College Faculty Association as Discussed in Closed
Session.

10. Approval of Recommendation to Dismiss a Tenured Faculty
Member as Discussed in Closed Session.

11. Approval of Human Resources Report as Discussed in Closed
Session.

67-68

V. Other Business. (Non-action)

VI. Adjournment.

Board Book Page 5



 Lake Land College 
Board of Trustees 

District No. 517 

Regular Board Meeting No. 676 
Board and Administration Center, Room 011 

Mattoon, IL 
April 10, 2023 

Minutes 

Call to Order. 

Chair Sullivan called the April 10, 2023, regular meeting of the Lake Land College Board of 
Trustees to order at 6:00 p.m. in room 011 of the Board & Administration Center, Mattoon, IL. 

Roll Call. 

Trustees Physically Present: Mr. Gary Cadwell, Vice-Chair; Mr. Kevin Curtis; Ms. Doris 
Reynolds; Mr. Dave Storm; Mr. Mike Sullivan, Chair; Ms. Denise Walk and Mr. Thomas Wright, 
Secretary, and Student Trustee Maggie Kelly. 

Trustees Absent: None. 

Others Participating via Telephonic or Electronic Means: None. 

Others Present: Dr. Jonathan Bullock, President; Dr. Ikemefuna Nwosu, Vice President for 
Academic Services; Ms. Jean Anne Highland, Chief of Staff; Ms. Seirra Laughhunn, Executive 
Assistant to the President’s Office; Dr. Valerie Lynch, Vice President for Student Services; Mr. 
Greg Nuxoll, Vice President for Business Services; and members of the staff.   

Approval of Consent Items.  

Trustee Cadwell moved and Trustee Walk seconded to approve the following consent items: 

1. Approval of Minutes of March 13, 2023, Regular Meeting.
2. Approval of Minutes of March 13, 2023, Closed Session.
3. Approval of Agenda of April 10, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting.
4. Bills for Payment and Travel Expenses, Including Trustee Travel Reimbursement.

The following is a summary by funds:

Board Book Page 6



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – April 10, 2023 
Page 2 of 14 
 

 
Education Fund $        583,759.10 

Building Fund $          29,698.55 

Site & Construction Fund $   65,412.50  

Bond & Interest Fund $                        -                                            

Auxiliary Services Fund $          63,721.89        

Restricted Purposes Fund $        834,116.67    

Working Cash Fund $                       - 

Audit Fund $                        - 

Liability Insurance Fund $            264,171.66 

Student Accts Receivables $        189,723.88 

Total $     2,030,604.25 

 
For a summary of trustee travel reimbursement and details of bills refer to:                                            
https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/board-of-trustees/  
 

5. Destruction of Tape Recording of October 11, 2021, Closed Session. 
 

There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Kelly voted yes. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Hearing of Citizens, Faculty, and Staff.  
 
There were no public comments.  
 
Committee Reports. 
 
ICCTA/Legislative. 
 
Trustee Walk reported that the senate and the house are busy reviewing bills. She said she will 
be attending the May ICCTA meeting in Springfield along with Chair Sullivan and Dr. Bullock. 
Ms. Walk also plans to attend lobby day on May 3 for legislative visits. 
 
Resource & Development. 
 
Trustee Cadwell, Committee Chair, said the Committee had not met since the last regular 
Board meeting and he had no report at this time.                   
 
Finance. 

Board Book Page 7

https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/board-of-trustees/


Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – April 10, 2023 
Page 3 of 14 
 

 
Trustee Storm, Committee Chair, said the Committee had not met since the last regular Board 
meeting and he had no report at this time.                                   
 
Buildings & Site. 
 
Trustee Curtis said the Committee had not met since the last regular Board meeting and he 
had no report at this time. 
 
Foundation. 
 
Trustee Wright highlighted the following information and said this was provided by Ms. 
Christina Donsbach, Executive Director for College Advancement: 
 

 Our new donor database went live early March and has led to exciting opportunities 
already! The new software was implemented just in time for our spring appeal and 
helped check the entire 46,000 records to ensure of proper mailing addresses. 

 The Foundation is excited to award over $600,000 in scholarships for the first round of 
our FY24 students, which is a new record! Thanks again to everyone who volunteered 
as a scholarship reader. Scholarships for incoming freshman will be announced at high 
school awards nights.  

 Please save the date for the Foundation’s annual golf classic on Friday, September 
29th!   
 

Student Report. 
 
Ms. Maggie Kelly, Student Trustee, said Student Life has been very busy lately hosting events. 
Student Government Association (SGA) hosted a successful Club Lunch on March 29. More 
than 80 students attended and received club information, enjoyed Jersey Mikes and played 
board games. The Student Activity Board and SGA collaborated and did an incentive for the 
clubs to participate in SAB events over the past month. The winning clubs who participated in 
the most events were math club, criminal justice club and pride club. SGA is also hosting a 
blood drive on April 20 in Webb Hall for anyone interested in donating.  
 
President’s Report. 
 

 Lake Land received a payment of $304,422 from the Illinois Department of Juvenile 
Justice (IDJJ) in March toward the FY 2023 outstanding balance. A total of $27,027 
remains outstanding for IDJJ for FY 2023.  

 Lake Land received no payments from the Illinois Department of Corrections (IDOC) in 
March toward the FY 2023 outstanding balance. A total of $1.1 million remains 
outstanding for IDOC for FY 2023.  

 In March, the College received payments from the State of Illinois for FY 2023 credit 
hour reimbursement of $330,225 and an equalization payment of $544,608. A total of 

Board Book Page 8



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – April 10, 2023 
Page 4 of 14 
 

$1.5 million in credit hour reimbursement and $1.6 million in equalization remain 
outstanding for FY 2023.   

 The College received no property tax payments in March. 

 We will begin our energy savings summer hours in which the College is closed on 
Fridays from May 19 – August 11. 
 

Business Items. 

 
Non-action Items. 
 
Presentation of Business Partnership Award to EJ Water Cooperative of Dieterich. 
 
Dr. Mike Rudibaugh, Division Chair Math & Science/Geography/Earth Science Instructor, 
highlighted why he nominated EJ Water for the Business Partnership award. Mr. Bill 
Teichmiller, CEO of EJ Water Cooperative, attended the meeting to receive the College award 
from Chair Sullivan. 
 
Quarterly Investment Report. 
 
Ms. Brianna Whitley and Ms. Amanda Gatewood from SC3F Wealth management Group 
(formerly Wells Fargo Advisors) presented during the meeting and summarized key data in the 
Quarterly Investment Report for the period ending March 31, 2023. Each trustee received a 
copy of the report. 
  
Acknowledgement of Community College Month. 
 
Chair Sullivan provided a statement on behalf of the Board of Trustees regarding national 
Community College Month this April and Governor Pritzker’s recent proclamation for the 
state’s acknowledgement. The Governor’s proclamation was included in the Board Book and 
highlighted the valuable role community colleges provide in Illinois. 
 
Faculty Focus on Advancing Student Success – Updates from the Cosmetology Program. 
 
Ms. Kristine Marler, Cosmetology Instructor and Director of Cosmetology/Esthetics Program, and Ms. 
Samantha Webster, Cosmetology Instructor, highlighted the College’s Cosmetology program. 
 
Spring 2023 Commencement. 
 

Dr. Valerie Lynch, Vice President for Student Services, invited Trustees to participate in the 
Spring 2023 Commencement ceremony at 6:00 p.m. on Friday, May 12, 2023, in the Field 
House.  
 
Phi Theta Kappa All-Illinois Academic Team Nominees.  
 

Board Book Page 9



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – April 10, 2023 
Page 5 of 14 
 

Dr. Lynch announced that three students, Mr. Andrew Matheny, Ms. Josie Strauch and Mr. Darrius 
Frazier, were nominated and recognized as members of the All-Illinois Community College Academic 
Team. 
 
Curriculum Committee Update. 
 
Dr. Nwosu presented an update on activities by the Curriculum Committee from October 2022 to March 
2023.  
 
Calendar of Events. 
 

Trustees reviewed a calendar of upcoming events. Dr. Bullock highlighted the Foundation 
Scholarship & Donor Reception set for April 12, the Annual Organizational Meeting on May 1, 
Commencement ceremonies on May 12 and the Board Retreat set for May 17. 
 
Action Items. 
 
Approval of Resolution No. 0423-009 Amending the Resolution Authorizing and 
Providing for the Issue of General Obligation Debt Certificates (Limited Tax), Series 
2022, of Community College District No. 517, Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, 
Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, Fayette, Jasper, Macon, 
Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of Illinois, to Revise the Purposes for 
Which the Proceeds of Such Certificates May be Used. (Roll Call Vote Required).  
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Dr. Bullock that the Board approve the above-
referenced resolution. Trustees reviewed details of the resolution to approve the revised use of 
$12,500,000 of the bond funds approved in 2022 so that the College may use these funds 
toward the purchase of the Patterson facility that will house the Rural Development 
Technology Center (Effingham Technology Center) and the Effingham Regional Career 
Academy. The purpose of the originally approved bond funds was to build a new facility and 
further renovate the Kluthe Center for the Technology Center and Career Academy, which will 
not happen since the College will be purchasing the Patterson facility.  
 
Trustee Storm moved and Trustee Curtis seconded to approve as presented Resolution No. 
0423-009 Amending the Resolution Authorizing and Providing for the Issue of General 
Obligation Debt Certificates (Limited Tax), Series 2022, of Community College District No. 517, 
Counties of Coles, Christian, Clark, Clay, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Effingham, 
Fayette, Jasper, Macon, Montgomery, Moultrie and Shelby and State of Illinois, to Revise the 
Purposes for Which the Proceeds of Such Certificates May be Used. [A full and complete copy 
of the Resolution is attached to and part of these minutes.]   
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Kelly voted yes. 

Board Book Page 10



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – April 10, 2023 
Page 6 of 14 
 

Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Approval of Resolution No. 0423-010 to Purchase Real Property Owned by Patterson 
Technology Center, Inc., for Property Located at 1201 Althoff Drive, Effingham, as 
Discussed in Closed Session. 
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Dr. Bullock that the Board approve as presented 
Resolution No. 0423-010 - Approval of Commercial Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement 
with Patterson Technology Center, Inc., for Property Located at 1201 Althoff Drive, Effingham. 
With Board approval of this Resolution, Trustees learned the Board would authorize the 
College President, and his designee to execute the Commercial Real Estate Purchase 
Agreement, any addenda, and/or any and all other required documents and instruments, and 
take any and all other required actions, to complete this transaction, which we anticipate will 
close on or before April 27, 2023.  
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Cadwell seconded to approve as presented Resolution 
No. 0423-010 - Approval of Commercial Real Estate Purchase and Sale Agreement with 
Patterson Technology Center, Inc., for Property Located at 1201 Althoff Drive, Effingham, as 
discussed in closed session. [A full and complete copy of the Resolution is attached to and 
part of these minutes.]   
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Kelly voted yes. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Approval of Lease Agreement with Patterson Technology Center, Inc., for Property 
Located at 1201 Althoff Drive, Effingham, as Discussed in Closed Session.  
 
Trustees heard a presentation from Dr. Bullock regarding the proposed 10-year, triple net 
Lease Agreement with Patterson that would take effect upon closing of the Purchase and Sale 
Agreement detailed in the previous action item above. Dr. Bullock highlighted the terms of the 
agreement and also how the College has agreed to coordinate with Patterson any Freedom of 
Information Act (FOIA) requests regarding the agreement.    
 
Trustee Walk moved and Trustee Curtis seconded to approve as presented a 10-year Lease 
Agreement between the College, as landlord, and Patterson Technology Center, Inc., a 
Minnesota Corporation, as tenant, to become effective upon the closing of the Commercial 
Real Estate Purchase Agreement with Patterson, for Patterson to lease a portion of the lower 
level of the facility located at 1201 Althoff Drive, Effingham, IL. The triple net lease terms 
include Patterson paying a pro-rata share for common area maintenance, real estate taxes 
attributable to their portion of the leased space, and a base monthly rent of $7,331.57 that will 

Board Book Page 11



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – April 10, 2023 
Page 7 of 14 
 

annually increase by 2% for the base rent. The Board further authorizes and directs its 
President and President’s designee, upon closing of the Commercial Real Estate Purchase 
Agreement, to execute the Lease Agreement, any addenda, and/or any and all other required 
documents and instruments, and take any and all other required actions, to complete this 
transaction. This action follows discussion on the topic held in closed session. 
  
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Kelly voted yes. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Approval of February 2023 Financial Statements.  
 
Trustees reviewed the February 2023 Financial Statements and heard from Mr. Greg Nuxoll, 
Vice President for Business Services, who highlighted the Financial Statements and significant 
variances.  
 
Trustee Storm moved and Trustee Reynolds seconded to approve as presented the February 
2023 Financial Statements.   
  
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Kelly voted yes. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Certification of Student Trustee and Sophomore Student Government Association 
Election Results.  
 
Trustees heard a request from Dr. Lynch to accept the above-referenced election results and 
seat the newly elected student trustee, Ms. Jacqueline “Jackie” Schertz of Mattoon. 
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Curtis seconded to certify as presented the 2023 
winners of the sophomore SGA delegate’s election, the student trustee election and seat Ms. 
Jacqueline “Jackie” Schertz as the 2023-2024 student trustee effective April 15, 2023.    
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Kelly voted yes. 

Board Book Page 12



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – April 10, 2023 
Page 8 of 14 
 

Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
  
Approval of Proposed Revisions to Board Policies: 07.22 – Change of Curriculum, 07.36 
- Accessibility of College Programs and Facilities and Services for Individuals with 
Disabilities. 
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Dr. Bullock to approve proposed revisions for the two 
above-referenced Policies. Dr. Bullock said that the administration has received no comments 
or requests for additional revisions since we presented these recommendations as first reading 
during the March 2023 regular Board meeting.  
 
Trustee Storm moved and Trustee Walk seconded to approve as presented Proposed 
Revisions to two Board Policies including 07.22 – Change of Curriculum and 07.36 - 
Accessibility of College Programs and Facilities and Services for Individuals with Disabilities. 
  
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Kelly voted yes. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Declaration of Surplus Items or Equipment. 
 
Mr. Nuxoll requested the Board to declare as surplus four pedicure chairs and 12 sets of 
lockers. He said these items have become obsolete and have little value to the College. If 
these items are approved by the Board as surplus, then they will be disposed of in a manner 
most beneficial to the College.   
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Curtis seconded to declare as surplus four pedicure 
chairs and 12 sets of lockers so that the administration may dispose of these items or 
equipment in a manner most beneficial to the College.  
  
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Kelly voted yes. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Approval of Renewal of Three-Year Membership with the Education Advisory Board. 
 

Board Book Page 13



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – April 10, 2023 
Page 9 of 14 
 

Trustees reviewed a request from Dr. Bullock to approve a three-year agreement with the 
Education Advisory Board (EAB) for a Community College Executive Forum membership 
renewal in the amount of $29,063 per year. He said that EAB is a best practices firm serving K-
12, community colleges and universities across the country. Dr. Bullock said as a member 
institution with EAB since 2017, EAB has worked with us in a variety of ways including 
facilitating on-campus strategy sessions, a dedicated advisor for ongoing service and support, 
best practice library, implementation tools and templates, strategy reports, informative 
newsletters, and on-demand webcasts available for all staff. He said the College has been 
collaborating with EAB to implement EAB Navigate, a student-facing, student success 
retention tool. He noted that our EAB membership has helped lower our cost for the EAB 
Navigate software tool.   
 
Trustee Cadwell moved and Trustee Storm seconded to approve as presented a three-year 
agreement with the Education Advisory Board (EAB) for a Community College Executive 
Forum membership renewal in the amount of $29,063 per year. 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Kelly voted yes. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Approval of Bid for the Field House Women’s Locker Room Renovation. 
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Mr. Nuxoll for the Board to award the bid from 
Schomburg & Schomburg Construction, Inc. of Danville, in the amount of $776,027, for the 
addition of two women’s locker rooms in the Field House and to renovate the men’s locker 
room. The bid tabulation sheet was provided to each trustee and Mr. Nuxoll said this shows 
Schomburg & Schomburg Construction submitting the lowest of two bids received. 
 
Trustee Walk moved and Trustee Cadwell seconded to approve as presented the bid from 
Schomburg & Schomburg Construction, Inc. of Danville, in the amount of $776,027, for the 
addition of two women’s locker rooms in the Field House and to renovate the men’s locker 
room    
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Kelly voted yes. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Approval of Purchase of Police Department Squad Vehicle and Related Equipment. 

Board Book Page 14



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – April 10, 2023 
Page 10 of 14 
 

 
Ms. Jean Anne Highland, Chief of Staff, requested the Board approve the purchase of a 2023 
Ford Police Interceptor Utility AWD vehicle and related equipment in the amount of $51,185 
from Morrow Brothers, a state contracted vendor. Trustees also reviewed a memorandum from 
Police Chief Jeff Branson regarding this purchase request. Ms. Highland reported the quote 
from Morrow Brothers includes a base price for the utility vehicle of $39,785 and additional 
costs to equip the vehicle for police use. Ms. Highland noted that a bid is not required since we 
will be purchasing from Morrow Brothers, a state contracted vendor, per Board Policy 10.22 
(4.K.). 
 
Trustee Reynolds moved and Trustee Walk seconded to approve the purchase of a 2023 Ford 
Police Interceptor Utility AWD vehicle and related equipment in the amount of $51,185, from 
Morrow Brothers, a state contracted vendor. 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Kelly voted yes. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Approval of Furniture Purchase for Neal Hall. 
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Mr. Nuxoll for the board to approve the purchase of 

furniture as part of the CDB – Neal Hall project renovation scheduled for this summer. Mr. 

Nuxoll reported that Ms. Kimberly Wellbaum, Facilities Coordinator to Physical Plant 

Operations, is leading the College’s efforts in working with Widmer Interiors and ordering the 

furniture. The furniture plan and proposed budget or quote were provided to each trustee. 

Mr. Nuxoll said the estimated invoice is $378,538.64, and Ms. Wellbaum does not believe 

there will be any significant additions. He asked for Board approval to proceed with this 

purchase at a gross cost not to exceed $400,000.    

 

Trustee Cadwell moved and Trustee Curtis seconded to approve the purchase of furniture 
from Widmer Interiors, as part of the state procured Omni contract pricing, to replace furniture 
following the remodel of the CDB – Neal Hall renovation project, at a cost not to exceed 
$400,000.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Kelly voted yes. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  

Board Book Page 15



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – April 10, 2023 
Page 11 of 14 
 

 
Acceptance of ICCB Developmental Education Reform Act Grant. 
 
Trustees heard a recommendation from Dr. Nwosu for the Board to accept a one-year 
Developmental Education Reform Act grant (DERA) for $99,997.00 from the Illinois 
Community College Board (ICCB). 
 
Trustee Cadwell moved and Trustee Reynolds seconded to accept as presented a one-year 
Developmental Education Reform Act grant (DERA) for $99,997.00 from the Illinois 
Community College Board (ICCB). 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Kelly voted yes. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Closed Session 
 
7:15 p.m. – Trustee Cadwell moved and Trustee Walk seconded to convene to closed session, 
pursuant to Chapter 5 of the Illinois Compiled Statutes Section 120/2(c)(1), to discuss the 
appointment, employment, compensation, performance, discipline or dismissal of a specific 
employee. 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Kelly voted yes. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Return to Open Session - Roll Call 
 
7:20 p.m.  
 
Trustees Physically Present: Mr. Gary Cadwell, Vice-Chair; Mr. Kevin Curtis, Ms. Doris 
Reynolds, Mr. Dave Storm, Mr. Mike Sullivan, Chair; Ms. Denise Walk, Mr. Tom Wright, 
Secretary; and Student Trustee Ms. Maggie Kelly.  
 
Trustees Absent: None. 
 
Approval of Human Resources Report.   
 

Board Book Page 16



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – April 10, 2023 
Page 12 of 14 
 

Trustees reviewed the Human Resources Report. Dr. Bullock requested the Board approve the 
Report as presented and he highlighted some of the recommended personnel changes. 
 
Trustee Curtis motioned and Trustee Storm seconded to approve as presented the following 
standard Human Resources Report as discussed in closed session.  
 
The following employees are recommended for FMLA leave.  Board policy 05.04.12. 
 
Klauser, Ryan  4/3/23-5/5/23 
Ryan, Lori  4/1/23-5/5/23 
Shoot, James  2/27/23-4/29/23 
 
The following positions have been recommended by the Lake Land College President’s 
Cabinet 
 
Technical Training Coordinator        Level 14 
 
Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are recommended for additional appointments 
      Position Effective Date 
Part-time  
Lynch, Annette Admissions and Records Commencement Asst 5/12/23 
  Primary Position Perkins Student Worker 
Songo, Divine International Studies Program Assistant 3/13/23 
  Primary Position Library Assistant 
Theriault, Emma Admissions and Records Commencement Asst 5/12/23 
  Primary Position Perkins Student Worker 
Vonderheide, Anthony Admissions and Records Commencement Asst 5/12/23 
  Primary Position College Work Study 
 
End Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are ending their additional appointment 
      Position Effective Date 
Part-time 
Czyzewski, Kennedy College Work Study - TRIO SSS 2/3/23 
  Primary Position TRIO DC Student Specialist 
Fatheree, Dustyn Adult Education Instructor 2/19/23 
  Primary Position Student Life Specialist 
Jenkins, Elyse College Work Study - Student Life 2/6/23 
  Primary Position Newspaper Ed Student New 
     
New Hire-Employees 
The following employees are recommended for hire 
      Position Effective Date 
Full-time 
Higginbotham, Taneya  Coor of Diversity,Equity,Inclusion, & Belonging 5/15/23 

Board Book Page 17



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – April 10, 2023 
Page 13 of 14 
 

McDowell, Grace Police Officer 4/11/23 
 
Part-time 
Carter, Natashia Fitness Center Specialist 3/31/23 
Castro de Jesus, Gabryela International Studies Program Assistant 3/27/23 
Dasenbrock, Charity Counseling Services Specialist 4/3/23 
Peer, Kyler Newspaper Editor - Student Newspaper 4/4/23 
Robinson, Canyon Fitness Center Specialist 3/21/23 
Rubin, Sidney Tutor - Student Learning Assistance Center 3/20/23 
Wright, Vanessa Dual Credit Coordinator 3/16/23 
  
Part-time Grant Funded 
Beech, Makayla Student Path Recipient 1/9/23 
Compton, Debra Pathways Classroom Assistant 4/11/23 
 
Unpaid 
Nading, Danielle Ag Volunteer 3/22/23 
 
Terminations/Resignations 
The following employees are terminating employment 
      Position Effective Date 
Full-time 
Cavanagh, Mason Associate Dean of Correctional Programs 3/31/23 
Collins, Amanda Correctional Office Assistant 3/28/23 
Cox-Lercher, Jolie Correctional Office Assistant 3/10/23 
Dodson, Evan Police Officer 3/31/23 
Monti, Francesca Correctional Office Assistant 4/10/23 
Tabbert, Will Kluthe Custodian 3/17/23 
 
Part-time 
Bray, Cassandra BNA Clinical Instructor Adult Education 1/4/23 
Dennis, Tracy Adjunct Faculty Social Science Division 12/11/20 
Kanouse, Douglas Adult Education Instructor 11/1/22 
Probst, Christina Allied Health BNA Clinical Instructor (hourly) 6/24/21 
Reed, Kaleb Perkins Student Worker - Humanities 5/12/22 
Sharp, Kennedy Counseling Services Specialist 3/1/23 
Thomas, Joseph Perkins Student Worker - Humanities 5/13/22 
Thomas, Justin Adjunct Faculty Social Science Division 12/10/21 
Towles, Lily College Work Study - Library 3/1/23 
Warman, Kristy Adjunct Faculty Allied Health Division 5/9/22 
 
Transfers/Promotions 
The following employee is recommended for a change in position 
      Position Effective Date 
Full-time 
Hawk, Laura Early Childhood Education Coach/Mentor        4/17/23  

Board Book Page 18



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – April 10, 2023 
Page 14 of 14 
 

  Transferring from Early Education Mentor/Coach 
 
There was no further discussion.  
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Kelly voted yes. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Other Business. (Non-action) 
 
There was no additional discussion. 
 
Adjournment. 
 
Trustee Cadwell moved and Trustee Curtis seconded to adjourn the meeting at 7:22 p.m.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
Motion carried by unanimous voice vote.  
 
 
Approved by: 
 
________________________                      __________________________ 
Board Chair       Board Secretary 
 
*Note – See Board of Trustees web page for any referenced attachments to these minutes.   

https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/  

Board Book Page 19

https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/


Lake Land College 
Board of Trustees 

District No. 517 

 
Special Board Meeting  

Board & Administration Center, Room 011, Mattoon, IL 
May 1, 2023 

 
Minutes   

 

 
Call to Order. 
 
Chairman Mike Sullivan called the special meeting of the Lake Land College Board of 
Trustees to order at 3:30 p.m. in the Board & Administration Center, room 011, Mattoon. 
 
Roll Call. 
 
Trustees Physically Present: Mr. Gary Cadwell, Vice-Chair; Mr. Kevin Curtis; Ms. Doris 
Reynolds; Mr. Dave Storm; Mr. Mike Sullivan, Chair; Ms. Denise Walk and Mr. Thomas 
Wright, Secretary. 
 
Trustees Absent: Student Trustee Schertz. 
 
Others Participating via Telephonic or Electronic Means: None. 
 
Others Present: Dr. Jonathan Bullock, President; Dr. Ikemefuna Nwosu, Vice President for 
Academic Services; Ms. Jean Anne Highland, Chief of Staff; Ms. Seirra Laughhunn, 
Executive Assistant to the President’s Office; Dr. Valerie Lynch, Vice President for Student 
Services; Mr. Greg Nuxoll, Vice President for Business Services; and members of the staff.   
 
Hearing of Citizens, Faculty, and Staff.  
 
There were no other public comments.  
 
Approval of Resolution No. 0523-011 to Acknowledge Results of the April 4, 2023, Board of 
Trustees Election.  
 
Trustee Cadwell motioned and Trustee Curtis seconded to approve Resolution No. 0523-011 
as presented to certify and proclaim that, as a result of the election held April 4, 2023, Ms. 
Doris Reynolds, Mr. Mike Sullivan and Ms. Denise Walk were each elected to serve a six-year 

Board Book Page 20



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – May 1, 2023 
Page 2 of 6 
 

term on the Board of Trustees of Community College District No. 517.  A full and complete 
copy of the Resolution is attached to and part of these minutes. 
 
There was no further discussion. 
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Schertz was absent from the meeting. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Adjournment Sine Die. 
   
Trustee Storm motioned and Trustee Walk seconded to adjourn sine die at 3:32 p.m.  
 
Motion carried with unanimous voice vote approval.  
 
Organization of the Board. 
 
Seating of Newly Elected Board Members. 
 
Chair Sullivan stated his appreciation for being re-elected as an incumbent Trustee and 
congratulated Ms. Doris Reynolds and Ms. Denise Walk as newly elected Trustees.  
 
Call to Order and Appointment of Secretary Pro Tem. 
 
Chair Sullivan called the meeting to order at 3:33 p.m. and appointed Trustee Wright to act as 
secretary pro tem. 
 
Roll call. 
 
Trustees Present: Mr. Gary Cadwell, Mr. Kevin Curtis, Ms. Doris Reynolds, Mr. Dave Storm, 
Mr. Mike Sullivan, Ms. Denise Walk and Mr. Thomas Wright, Secretary. 
 
Trustees Absent: Student Trustee Schertz. 
 
Election of Chairperson Pro Tem. 
   
Trustee Walk nominated Trustee Sullivan to act as Chairperson Pro Tem. Trustee Storm 
seconded the nomination. 
 
There being no further nominations, Chair Sullivan declared the nominations to be closed. 
 
Chair Sullivan asked for a roll call vote on the motion to appoint the Chairperson Pro Tem.  
 
There was no further discussion. 

Board Book Page 21



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – May 1, 2023 
Page 3 of 6 
 

Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Schertz was absent from the meeting. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Election of Secretary Pro Tem.  
 
Trustee Walk nominated Trustee Wright to the position of Secretary Pro Tem. Trustee  
Reynolds seconded the nomination. 
 
There being no further nominations, Chair Pro Tem Sullivan declared the nominations to be 
closed.  
 
Chair Pro Tem Sullivan asked for a roll call vote on the motion to appoint the Secretary Pro 
Tem.  
 
There was no further discussion. 
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Schertz was absent from the meeting. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Election of Board Chair and Length of Term.  
 
Trustee Reynolds nominated Trustee Cadwell to serve as Chair of the Board for a period of 
one year. Trustee Walk seconded the nomination. 
 
There being no further nominations, Chair Pro Tem Sullivan declared the nominations to be 
closed and requested a roll call vote on the motion to elect Trustee Cadwell as the Board Chair 
for a period of one year.    
 
There was no further discussion. 
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Schertz was absent from the meeting. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.    
 
Election of Board Vice-Chair and Length of Term.  
 

Board Book Page 22



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – May 1, 2023 
Page 4 of 6 
 

Trustee Reynolds nominated Trustee Wright to serve as Vice Chair of the Board for a period of 
one year. Trustee Cadwell seconded the nomination. 
 
There being no further nominations, Chair Pro Tem Sullivan declared the nominations to be 
closed and requested a roll call vote on the motion to elect Trustee Wright as the Board Vice 
Chair for a period of one year.    
 
There was no further discussion. 
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Schertz was absent from the meeting. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Election of Board Secretary and Length of Term.  
 
Trustee Walk nominated Trustee Storm to serve as Secretary of the Board for a period of one 
year. Trustee Curtis seconded the nomination. 
 
There being no further nominations, Chair Pro Tem Sullivan declared the nominations to be 
closed and requested a roll call vote on the motion to elect Trustee Storm the Board Secretary 
for a period of one year.   
 
There was no further discussion. 
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Schertz was absent from the meeting. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.   
 
The new officers took their seats, and Chair Cadwell took responsibility for the meeting. He led 
the newly elected Trustees in taking the oath or affirmation of office per Article XIII, Section 3 
of the Constitution of the State of Illinois, stating the following: 
 

“I do solemnly affirm that I will support the Constitution of the United States, and the 
Constitution of the State of Illinois, and that I will faithfully discharge the duties of the 
office of Lake Land College Trustee to the best of my ability.”  

 
Approval of Resolution No. 0523-012 – Appointment of College Treasurer and Approval 
of Surety Bonds.  
 
Trustee Curtis motioned and Trustee Walk seconded to Approve Resolution No. 0523-012 as 
presented to appoint Mr. Greg Nuxoll, Vice President for Business Services, as College 

Board Book Page 23



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – May 1, 2023 
Page 5 of 6 
 

Treasurer and approve the related Surety Bonds. A full and complete copy of the Resolution is 
attached to and part of these minutes. 
  
There was no further discussion. 
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Schertz was absent from the meeting. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Approval of Resolution No. 0523-013 Authorizing College Treasurer to Act as College 
Fiscal Agent.  
 
Trustee Curtis motioned and Trustee Sullivan seconded to Approve Resolution No. 0523-0013 
as presented to authorize the Treasurer to act as the College’s fiscal agent. A full and 
complete copy of the Resolution is attached to and part of these minutes. 
  
There was no further discussion. 
Roll Call Vote:  
Yes: Trustees Cadwell, Curtis, Reynolds, Storm, Sullivan, Walk and Wright. 
No: None.  
Advisory Vote: Student Trustee Schertz was absent from the meeting. 
Absent: None. 
Motion carried.  
 
Recognition of Outgoing Board Chairman.  
   
Chair Cadwell presented a plaque to outgoing Chair Sullivan and thanked him for his 
outstanding service as Board Chair during the past two years.     
 
Adjournment. 
 
Trustee Curtis moved and Trustee Wright seconded to adjourn the meeting of the Lake Land 
College Board of Trustees at 3:44 p.m.   
Motion carried with unanimous voice vote approval. 
 
 
Approved By: 
 
 
________________________                      __________________________ 
Mr. Gary Cadwell, Board Chair     Mr. Dave Storm, Board Secretary 
 
 

Board Book Page 24



Lake Land College Board of Trustees 
Minutes – May 1, 2023 
Page 6 of 6 
 

 
*Note – See Board of Trustees web page for any referenced attachments to these minutes.   
 https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/minutes_index.cfm 
 

Board Book Page 25

https://www.lakelandcollege.edu/col/board_minutes/minutes_index.cfm


 

 

 
TO: Valerie Lynch 

FROM: Dustyn Fatheree 

RE: 2022 ICCJA Navigator Awards  
  

Lake Land College newspaper student employees attended a two-day conference on April 13-14, 2023 for the 
Illinois Community College Journalism Association (ICCJA) spring conference at the College of DuPage (CoD). 
These students competed against other Illinois community colleges in various categories  there were 321 entries 
submitted from 15 schools to the contest, in total. On behalf of the ICCJA, I am honored to announce these 
awards for the Navigator staff regarding the 2022-2023 year:  

1st Place:  Adam Alexander for Sports Photo 

   Audra Gullquist for News Story 

3rd Place:   Adam Alexander for Sports Game Story 

   Audra Gullquist for News Photo 

   Paul Dorman for Feature Writing 

   Paul Dorman for News Column 

Honorable Mentions:  

   Adam Alexander for Sports Photo 

   Molly Smith for Sports Game Story 

   Navigator Staff for Best Student Media 

                 

Congratulations to the students who received an award! The Navigator will continue to strive to create innovative 
and high-quality content for the Lake Land community. 

 

Board Book Page 26



 

 

 
TO: Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

FROM: Dr. Valerie Lynch, Vice President for Student Services 

RE: 
06.18.01 Credit through State Seal of Biliteracy, 06.16.01 Credit for Military Service, 

07.01.02 Special Admission and Graduation Requirements 
  

April 21, 2023 

The Academic Standards Committee has reviewed the following board policies and determined that minor 

updates are needed: 

 

06.18.01 Credit through State Seal of Biliteracy 

Update needed to remove French and German from foreign languages taught at the College. 

06.16.01 Credit for Military Service 

Update needed to reflect the correct number of hours of credit awarded for completion of military basic 

training. 

07.01.02 Special Admission and Graduation Requirements 

Update needed to remove language about “pending approval from ICCB.” 

 

I would like to present the proposed changes for first reading at the May 8, 2023 Board of Trustees meeting. 

I am happy to answer any questions that you or the Board may have.  Thank you! 

Board Book Page 27



06.18.01 
 

Credit through the Illinois State Seal of Biliteracy 

 
 

Lake Land College grants course credit for two semesters of foreign 
language, including sign language, if a student’s high school transcript 
indicates that the student has been awarded the Illinois State Seal of 
Biliteracy. The student must request the course credit through the Lake Land 
College Admissions and Records Office within three (3) academic years after 
graduating from high school. Credit is based on criteria established by the 
State Board of Education and the following provisions apply: 

 
1. Students must submit a final high school transcript verifying receipt of 

the State Seal of Biliteracy. 
 

2. Students must request course credit for the Seal within three (3) 
academic years after graduating from high school and must be 
currently enrolled at Lake Land College at the time of the request. 

 
3. Credit will be limited to the foreign languages the college is approved 

to offer as follows: 
a. ENG110/111: Manual Communication-Deaf and Advanced 

Signing 
b. FLG130/131: Elementary French I and II 
c.b. FLG140/141: Elementary Spanish I and II 
d.c. FLG150/151: Beginning German I and II 

 

4. Credit will be granted without a grade and will not be used to calculate 
grade point average but may be used to fulfill graduation requirements. 
(See Board Policy 07.24 Graduation Requirements.) 

 
5. No tuition or fees will be assessed for the credit to be awarded. 

 
6. Students should be aware that the credit may not be accepted by 

another college or university. 
 

Adopted June 12, 2017 
Revised 

 
 

Page 1 of 1 

Board Book Page 28



 

06.16.01 
 

 

Credit for Military Experience 

 
 

Lake Land College grants credit for military training, education and 
occupational experience in accordance with the American Council on 
Education (ACE) Military Guide including credit for DANTES Subject 
Standardized Tests (DSST). ACE credit recommendations appear on a 
service member’s Joint Services Transcript. 

 
To receive Lake Land College credit based on the Joint Services 
Transcript: 

 

1. Students must submit the Joint Services Transcript and a Transcript 
Evaluation Request to Admissions and Records. 

 
2. The Joint Services Transcript will be evaluated to determine specific 

course credit applicable to the requirements of the student’s 
certificate or degree program. 

 
3. Credit will be granted without a grade, but it may be used to fulfill 

graduation requirements. (See Board Policy 07.24 Graduation 
Requirements.) 

 
4. Credit will not be used to calculate grade point average. 

 
5. No tuition or fees will be charged for credit awarded. 

 
6. Students should be aware that credit awarded for military 

experience may not be accepted by another college or university. 
 

Students may be awarded four three hours of credit for completion of 
military basic training. If this credit is not documented on a Joint 
Services Transcript, the student may submit to the Admissions and 
Records Office a DD 214 indicating honorable discharge. 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 2 

Board Book Page 29



Board Policy No. 06.16.01 

Information regarding specific credit available for military experience is 
maintained in Admissions and Records. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Adopted June 11, 2018 
Revised 

Page 2 of 2 

Board Book Page 30



07.01.02 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

Special Admission and Graduation Requirements 
for Select Technical Programs 

 
It is a statutory duty and responsibility of the Board of Trustees to approve 
policies for the admission of students and graduation requirements.1 All 
requests to establish special admission criteria and/or unique graduation 
requirements for technical programs must be submitted to the Academic 
Standards Committee. These requests should include a rationale that sets 
forth the uniqueness of the program in regards to establishing special 
admission or graduation requirements. When a division chair wishes to 
change or eliminate an approved special admission criterion or graduation 
requirement, they are required to bring the requested change along with the 
rationale for the change to the Academic Standards Committee for 
consideration. 

 

The Academic Standards Committee will act upon requested special 
admission and unique graduation requirements in a timely manner. If the 
committee approves a program to establish or eliminate special admission 
criteria or unique graduation requirements, it will forward the 
recommendation to the President and Board of Trustees for final action. All 
programs approved by the Board of Trustees to have special admission 
criteria or graduation requirements will be identified in the College catalog. 
Specific admission criteria and graduation requirements will be updated on 
the Special Admissions program page of the Lake Land College website. 

 
Programs with approved special admission and unique graduation 
requirements: 

 

Associate Degrees 
Associate Degree in Nursing, Court Reporting Technology, Dental Hygiene, 
Fire Science Management (pending final approval from the Illinois 
Community College Board), John Deere Tech, Medical Assistant, Physical 
Therapist Assistant. 

Board Book Page 31



Board Policy 07.01.02 

Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 

 

Certificates 
Fire Science Management (pending final approval from the Illinois 
Community College Board), Massage Therapy, Medical Assistant, Practical 
Nursing. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1 See Board Policies 02.03 and 07.24. 

 

Adopted May 8, 2000 
Revised June 11, 2012 
Revised June 12, 2017 
Revised May 11, 2020 
Revised July 13, 2020 
Revised 

Board Book Page 32



 

 

 

___________ 
Revised 4/3/23 

 

 

 

Calendar of Events  
 
 
Monday, May 8, 2023 5 p.m. - Board Dinner – Foundation and Alumni Center  
 6 p.m. - Board Meeting – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 
Friday, May 12, 2023 10 a.m.  -  Nursing Pinning Ceremony – Field House 
 12 p.m.  -  John Deere Ag Tech Luncheon – West Building 
 2:30 p.m. - Dental Hygiene Ceremony – Luther Student Center 
 Theatre 
 4:30 p.m. - Pizza party – Foundation and Alumni Center 
 5:45 p.m. - Platform party will line up in the library 
 6 p.m. - 2023 Commencement Ceremony - Field House 
 
Tuesday, May 16, 2023 10 a.m. - Pathways Graduation – Luther Student Center Theatre 
 6 p.m. - GED Graduation – Luther Student Center Theatre 
 
Wednesday, May 17, 2023 11:15 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 Resource and Development Meeting 
 12 p.m. – 5 p.m. Board of Trustees Annual Retreat with Lunch 
 Board and Administration Center 
 
Thursday, June 8, 2023 Buildings and Site Committee Meeting 
 8 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 Finance Committee Meeting   
 9 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 10 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 
Monday, June 12, 2023 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Foundation and Alumni Center  
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 
Thursday, July 6, 2023 Buildings and Site Committee Meeting 
 8 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 Finance Committee Meeting   
 9 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 10 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 
Monday, July 10, 2023 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Foundation and Alumni Center  
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 
Thursday, August 10, 2023 Buildings and Site Committee Meeting 
 8 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 Finance Committee Meeting   
 9 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 10 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 
Monday, August 14, 2023 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Kluthe Center, Effingham 
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Kluthe Center, Effingham 
 
Thursday, September 7, 2023 Buildings and Site Committee Meeting 

Board Book Page 33



 

 

 

___________ 
Revised 4/3/23 

 

 

 

 8 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 Finance Committee Meeting   
 9 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 10 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 
Monday, September 11, 2023 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Foundation and Alumni Center  
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 
Friday, September 29, 2023 Foundation Golf Outing – Mattoon Golf and Country Club 
 
Thursday, October 5, 2023 Buildings and Site Committee Meeting 
 8 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 Finance Committee Meeting   
 9 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 10 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 
Monday, October 9, 2023 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Foundation and Alumni Center  
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 
Thursday, November 9, 2023 Buildings and Site Committee Meeting 
 8 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 Finance Committee Meeting   
 9 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 10 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 
Monday, November 13, 2023 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Foundation and Alumni Center  
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 
Thursday, December 7, 2023 Buildings and Site Committee Meeting 
 8 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 Finance Committee Meeting   
 9 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 Resource and Development Committee Meeting 
 10 a.m. – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 
Monday, December 11, 2023 5 p.m. – Board Dinner – Foundation and Alumni Center  
 6 p.m. – Board Meeting – Board and Administration Center, 011 
 
 
 

Board Book Page 34



 

 

MEMO 
TO: Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

FROM: Mr. Greg Nuxoll, Vice President for Business Services 

DATE: 

 

April 25, 2023 

RE: March 2023 Financial Statement Summary 
  

 
Outlined below are the budgetary variances of note for the month of March for Fiscal Year 
2023.   
 
Areas of Concern: 

• We do not feel we have any significant budgetary areas of concern through March 
2023, the ninth month of FY 2023.    

 
Overall Variances: 

• Revenue – Total March 2023 revenue was $1,412,488 resulting in a favorable variance 
of $70,533 month to date and $2,324,839 year to date.   
 

• Expenditures – Total March 2023 expenditures were $2,464,065 resulting in a monthly 
unfavorable variance of $140,993 month to date while the year to date variance remains 
favorable to budget $2,709,474. 
 

Revenue Variances:  
• Local Sources – An unfavorable variance exists of $31,865 month to date and $38,058 

year to date.    Overall, the variances on the local counties property tax cycle are timing 
related as to when funds are received by the College.  As the year transpires, the 
variance will normalize. 
 

•  ICCB Credit Hour Grant – We received $316,935 in March 2023 resulting in a favorable 
monthly variance of $55,010 and a yearly favorable variance of $380,791.  The variances 
are timing related as we typically receive a larger payment in the 1st month of each 
quarter and smaller payments the last two months of each quarter.  We expect the 
variance to normalize by year-end.  

 
• ICCB Equalization Grant – We received $544,608 of equalization payments in March 

2023 resulting in a $0 month and year to date variance. 

Board Book Page 35



Page 2 of 3 

 
• Tuition & Fees –March 2023 yielded an unfavorable monthly variance of $42,918 for 

tuition and $129,392 for fees.  Year to date, tuition is favorable to budget $1,386,976 
and fees are also favorable $53 year to date.  In the fiscal year 2023 budget, the 
College budgeted enrollment to be at the same level as fiscal year 2022.  Through 
March 2023, the enrollment headcount and credit hours are slightly above anticipated 
levels resulting in a favorable tuition variance.   
 

• Other State Sources – The month to date variance in other state sources is unfavorable 
by $3,326 and year to date $51,845.    
 

• Other Revenue – Other revenue is favorable by $223,025 month to date and $632,172 
year to date.   The major driver of the positive variance is additional revenue from the 
CBI and CDL programs. 
 

 
Expenditure Variances: 

• Salary & Wages (overall) – Month to date, salary and wages were $61,918 favorable 
compared to budget in March 2023 and continues to maintain a year to date favorable 
variance of $1,047,720.  As the year transpires, we expect the variance to remain closer 
to budget. 

 
• Employee Benefits (overall) – A favorable monthly variance in employee benefits exists 

in March 2023 of $8,933 and year to date $107,348.    
 

• Instructional – The Instructional expenditures had an unfavorable variance in March 
2023 of $29,483 while maintaining a year to date favorable variance of $936,811.   The 
year to date variance is mainly attributable to favorable variances in salary and wages 
and contractual services.    
   

• Academic Support – Month to date, the Academic Support expenditures were $15,398 
unfavorable to budget and year to date the unfavorable variance is $22,207.     

 
• Student Services – The Student Services expenditures had a favorable variance in March 

2023 of $17,470 and a year to date favorable variance of $330,789.  
     

• Public Service/Continuing Education – The Public Service/Continuing Education had a 
favorable variance of $10,324 month to date and favorable year to date variance of 
$77,074.  

 
• Operations & Maintenance – Monthly to date, the Operations and Maintenance 

expenditures were $5,295 unfavorable to budget but the variance remains favorable 
year to date $321,229. 
  

• Institutional Support – The Institutional Support expenditures were $118,214 
unfavorable to budget in March 2023 but the variance remains favorable year to date 
$1,464,013.  There are year to date positive variances in nearly all line items with the 

Board Book Page 36



Page 3 of 3 

largest variance in Contractual Services, Contingency Funds, Other and General 
Materials and Supplies.  Over the course of the year, we expect the variance to 
normalize. 
 

• Scholarships, Grants, Waivers – The Scholarships, Grants and Waivers area had an 
unfavorable variance for March 2023 of $398 and maintains an unfavorable year 
variance year to date in the amount of $398,234.  The YTD variance is more a timing 
issue as to when scholarships are provided and we expect the variance to normalize 
throughout the year.   

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions, need any further 
clarification on any of these items, or have others you would like to discuss. 

 

 

Board Book Page 37



Board Meeting – May 2023  
Fund 03, 04, 05, 06, 11 and 12 Analysis – As of 03/31/2023 

 

Fund 03 - Operational and Maintenance Restricted Funds 
• Year to date, the revenues are under budget by $550,558 and expenditures were over budget 

by $9,105,358 for a net deficit of $9,655,916. 
 

o The payment of the $16,025,000 bond is driving the significant expenditure variance 
and overall negative variance. 

 Fund 04 – Bond and Interest Fund  
• Year to date, the revenues were over budget by $139,724 and expenditures were over budget 

by $134,360 for a net variance of a positive $5,365. 
 

o The favorable variance in local taxes and bond funding interest are the most significant 
factors influencing the variances. 

 

Fund 05 – Auxiliary and Enterprise Funds 
• Year to date, the revenues were over budget by $513,054 and expenditures were under budget 

by $26,678 for a net excess of a positive $539,732. 
 

o The largest revenue sources that were above budget were the Print Shop, Student Life 
and the Bookstore. 

o The largest expenditure line item unfavorable to budget is the Print Shop but the overall 
variance is mitigated by all other line items. 

Fund 06 – Restricted Funds 
• Year to date, overall revenue is $7,227,125 under budget. 
• Year to date, overall expenditures are $7,279,249 under budget. 

 
o Fund 06 is our restricted purposes fund where we record grants and third party 

spending such as IDOC and DJJ.  The grant document or IDOC/DJJ contract dictates 
what we will receive as revenue and the same amount is allocated for spending.  We are 
only reimbursed based on what we actually spend so the revenues and the expenses 
should always equal at year end. 

 
o We included the CARES Act Funds for students and the institution in both revenue and 

expense, and of course we did not budget for such funds. 

Fund 11 – Audit Fund 

• Year to date, the revenues are under budget by $74 and expenditures were under by $662 for a 
net excess of a positive $588. 

Fund 12 – Tort Fund 

• Year to date, the revenues are over budget by $51,215 and expenditures were over budget by 
$27,740 for a net excess of a positive $23,475. 
 
 

Board Book Page 38



Mar-23

Current Month

 Current Month 

Budget Variance

 Current YTD 

Actual 

 Current YTD 

Budget 

 Current YTD 

Budget 

Variance 

 % Current 

YTD Budget 

Variance 

 Previous 

YTD 

 FY22 Final 

Audited 

Numbers 

 FY23 Annual 

Budget 

 Revenues:

118,053             149,918              (31,865)           Local Sources 11,068,043        11,106,100   (38,058)          -0.34% 10,292,624  10,863,543  11,372,321  

316,935             261,925              55,010            ICCB Credit Hour Grant 4,309,672         3,928,882     380,791         9.69% 3,280,310    4,695,485    5,238,509    

544,608             544,608              -                  ICCB Equalization Grant 4,901,475         4,901,475     (0)                  0.00% 4,547,257    6,255,650    6,535,300    

36,466               39,792                (3,326)             Other State Sources 912,164            964,009        (51,845)          -5.38% 879,552       1,001,827    1,201,680    

(45,262)              (2,344)                 (42,918)           Tuition 7,389,138         6,002,162     1,386,976      23.11% 7,701,115    7,634,263    6,000,121    

159,551             288,943              (129,392)         Fees 3,629,479         3,629,427     53                 0.00% 3,418,459    3,459,045    5,551,040    

282,137             59,112                223,025          Other Revenue 1,466,509         834,337        632,172         75.77% 1,093,869    3,439,821    1,034,153    

-                    -                      -                  Gift in Kind 14,750              -               14,750           0.00% 5,000           140,237       -              

1,412,488          1,341,955           70,533            Total Revenues 33,691,230        31,366,391   2,324,839      1                  31,218,186  37,489,871  36,933,124  

Expenditures:

Instructional

915,235             981,179              65,944            Salary and Wages 8,567,787         9,183,184     615,397         6.70% 7,875,862    9,997,327    13,028,296  

176,815             176,712              (103)                Employee Benefits 1,497,783         1,555,860     58,077           3.73% 1,468,784    2,051,378    2,188,558    

132,881             70,800                (62,081)           Contractual Services 277,790            381,790        104,000         27.24% 242,645       407,858       426,050       

41,313               13,545                (27,767)           General Materials and Supplies 448,992            532,972        83,979           15.76% 347,959       507,828       578,994       

6,309                 11,645                5,336              Travel and Meeting Expenses 43,012              98,312          55,300           56.25% 11,349         28,893         142,462       

14,380               4,900                  (9,480)             Fixed Charges 32,478              55,250          22,772           41.22% 30,703         55,290         56,375         

1,533                 200                     (1,333)             Capital Outlay 6,593                18,628          12,035           64.61% 62,057         107,718       28,828         

-                    -                      -                  Other Expenditures -                    -               -                0.00% -              -              -              

-                    -                      -                  Gift in Kind 14,750              -               (14,750)          0.00% 5,000           -              -              

1,288,465          1,258,982           (29,483)           Total Instructional 10,889,185        11,825,996   936,811         7.92% 10,044,359  13,156,291  16,449,563  

Academic Support

50,755               32,411                (18,344)           Salary and Wages 464,310            365,464        (98,846)          -27.05% 288,710       372,622       216,254       

11,181               13,880                2,698              Employee Benefits 92,969              123,590        30,621           24.78% 55,262         74,099         63,897         

-                    -                      -                  Contractual Services -                    -               -                0.00% -              -              -              

6,059                 5,008                  (1,051)             General Materials and Supplies 187,529            206,775        19,246           9.31% 188,459       203,048       209,650       

1,511                 2,810                  1,299              Travel and Meeting Expenses 6,684                33,456          26,772           80.02% 4,705           10,746         11,100         

-                    -                      -                  Fixed Charges -                    -               -                0.00% -              -              -              

-                    -                      -                  Capital Outlay -                    -               -                0.00% -              -              -              

-                    -                      -                  Gift in Kind -                    -               -                0.00% -              -              -              

69,507               54,109                (15,398)           Total Academic Support 751,492            729,285        (22,207)          -3.05% 537,137       660,514       500,901       

Student Services

135,429             153,929              18,501            Salary and Wages 1,317,917         1,482,497     164,580         11.10% 1,197,163    1,617,025    1,892,481    

39,050               49,072                10,022            Employee Benefits 348,309            427,687        79,378           18.56% 306,703       438,935       574,909       

-                    -                      -                  Contractual Services 11,743              9,540            (2,203)           -23.10% 10,372         20,492         12,040         

12,048               2,804                  (9,243)             General Materials and Supplies 54,497              114,293        59,796           52.32% 44,947         96,942         129,821       

3,309                 1,500                  (1,809)             Travel and Meeting Expenses 36,511              65,750          29,239           44.47% 11,661         50,833         83,565         

-                    -                      -                  Fixed Charges -                    -               -                0.00% 80,409         80,409         -              

-                    -                      -                  Other Expenditures 7,500                7,500            -                0.00% 7,500           14,100         15,000         

189,835             207,305              17,470            Total Student Services 1,776,479         2,107,268     330,789         15.70% 1,658,756    2,318,735    2,707,816    

Public Service/Cont Ed

34,095               42,738                8,643              Salary and Wages 313,462            405,327        91,865           22.66% 220,267       323,117       493,346       

5,464                 5,668                  204                 Employee Benefits 51,503              45,867          (5,636)           -12.29% 42,015         61,706         62,870         

5,170                 5,500                  330                 Contractual Services 90,337              46,275          (44,062)          -95.22% 48,899         56,796         59,400         

6,853                 7,583                  730                 General Materials and Supplies 56,796              87,673          30,877           35.22% 47,005         57,486         125,645       

445                    848                     403                 Travel and Meeting Expenses 8,943                10,659          1,716             16.10% 1,819           4,135           15,953         

8,533                 8,548                  14                   Fixed Charges 77,955              80,269          2,314             2.88% 76,919         105,125       106,271       

-                    -                      -                  Capital Outlay -                    -               -                0.00% 115,000       115,000       -              

-                    -                      -                  Other -                    -               -                0.00% -              -              -              

-                    -                      -                  GIK -                    -               -                0.00% -              -              -              

60,560               70,884                10,324            Total Public Service/ Cont Ed 598,995            676,069        77,074           11.40% 551,924       723,363       863,485       

Operations & Maintenance

81,764               83,801                2,037              Salary and Wages 763,403            774,985        11,582           1.49% 663,410       931,217       1,041,986    

30,660               33,120                2,459              Employee Benefits 254,548            288,639        34,091           11.81% 233,134       334,730       376,366       

11,327               60                       (11,267)           Contractual Services 212,287            202,128        (10,159)          -5.03% 175,265       237,194       269,170       

23,222               -                      (23,222)           General Materials and Supplies 232,502            194,250        (38,252)          -19.69% 134,184       198,989       250,500       

-                    -                      -                  Travel and Meeting Expenses 321                   1,150            829                72.13% 51                199              1,150           

1,100                 750                     (350)                Fixed Charges 17,674              11,750          (5,924)           -50.42% 7,500           103,277       104,000       

100,236             125,283              25,047            Utilities 819,092            1,127,550     308,458         27.36% 794,704       1,058,060    1,503,400    

-                    -                      -                  Capital Outlay 4,396                25,000          20,604           82.42% -              10,800         25,000         

-                    -                      -                  Contingency Funds -                    -               -                0.00% -              -              -              

-                    -                      -                  Gift In Kind -                    -               -                0.00% -              -              -              

248,309             243,014              (5,295)             Total Operation and Maint 2,304,222         2,625,451     321,229         1                  2,008,248    2,874,466    3,571,572    

Institutional Support

287,497             272,636              (14,862)           Salary and Wages 2,271,666         2,534,809     263,143         10.38% 2,159,042    3,519,884    3,533,791    

86,015               79,668                (6,348)             Employee Benefits 796,200            707,017        (89,182)          -12.61% 1,041,837    1,313,188    824,367       

41,942               62,315                20,373            Contractual Services 995,963            2,003,845     1,007,882      50.30% 397,495       649,571       2,094,460    

53,147               40,280                (12,867)           General Materials and Supplies 1,380,486         1,379,615     (871)              -0.06% 1,392,533    1,548,250    1,863,491    

9,823                 33,022                23,199            Travel and Meeting Expenses 94,481              124,250        29,769           23.96% 23,608         67,321         382,917       

1,520                 750                     (770)                Fixed Charges 194,963            215,250        20,287           9.42% 201,998       205,246       220,000       

-                    -                      -                  Capital Outlay 45,178              18,900          (26,278)          -139.03% 74,772         111,338       18,900         

74,701               107                     (74,594)           Contingency Funds 549,659            754,943        205,284         27.19% 356,691       563,005       1,126,330    

-                    -                      -                  Other 272,039            726,627        454,588         62.56% 563,382       563,382       119,075       

-                    -                      -                  Strategic Initiatives 14,946              400,000        385,054         96.26% 297,501       307,891       -              

52,346               -                      (52,346)           One Time Budget Requests 785,663            -               (785,663)        0.00% -              1,297,959    -              

606,991             488,777              (118,214)         Total Institutional Support 7,401,243         8,865,256     1,464,013      1                  6,508,859    10,147,034  10,183,331  

398                    -                      (398)                Scholarships, grants, waivers 558,800            160,566        (398,234)        -248.02% 642,310       682,256       1,228,566    

2,464,065          2,323,072           (140,993)         Total Expenditures 24,280,417        26,989,890   2,709,474      10.04% 21,951,592  30,562,660  35,505,234  

(1,051,577)         (981,117)             (70,460)           Revenue Less Expenditures 9,410,813         4,376,501     5,034,312      1                  9,266,594    6,927,211    1,427,890    

-                    -                      -                  Transfers Out: -                    -               -                0.00% -              1,521,178    1,427,890    

Excess of Revenues over

(1,051,577)         (981,117)             (70,460)           Expenditures & Transfers 9,410,813         4,376,501     5,034,312      1                  9,266,594    5,406,033    -              

1,412,488           1,341,955             70,533             33,691,230        31,366,391   2,324,839      

2,464,065           2,323,072             (140,993)          24,280,417        26,989,890   2,709,474      

(1,051,577)          (981,117)              (70,460)            9,410,813          4,376,501     5,034,312      

General Fund--Funds 01 and 02--For Internal Use Only
Board Book Page 39



Current Month

 Current Month 

Budget Variance

 Current YTD 

Actual 

 Current YTD 

Budget 

 Current YTD 

Budget Variance 

1,504,775.28        1,566,693.64   61,918.36          Salary and Wages 13,698,545.82   14,746,265.73   1,047,719.91     

349,185.74           358,118.86      8,933.12            Employee Benefits 3,041,311.97     3,148,659.74     107,347.77        

191,318.89           138,674.96      (52,643.93)         Contractual Services 1,588,119.85     2,643,577.12     1,055,457.27     

142,641.80           69,221.63        (73,420.17)         General Materials and Supplies 2,360,802.65     2,515,578.71     154,776.06        

21,396.83              49,825.22        28,428.39          Travel and Meeting Expenses 189,951.19        333,576.71        143,625.52        

25,533.20              14,947.50        (10,585.70)         Fixed Charges 323,069.80        362,518.50        39,448.70           

100,235.92           125,283.33      25,047.41          Utilities 819,092.13        1,127,550.00     308,457.87        

1,532.60                200.00              (1,332.60)           Capital Outlay 56,166.09           62,527.99           6,361.90             

74,701.33              107.00              (74,594.33)         Contingency Funds 549,658.93        754,943.00        205,284.07        

52,345.63              -                     (52,345.63)         Other Expenditures 1,094,897.69     1,134,126.86     39,229.17           

397.50                   -                     (397.50)              Scholarships Grants and Waivers 558,800.46        160,566.00        (398,234.46)       

2,464,064.72        2,323,072.14   (140,992.58)      Total 24,280,416.58   26,989,890.36   2,709,473.78     

Board Book Page 40



Salary & Wages Actual Budgeted Variance

Projected 

Actual Budgeted Variance

Salary and Wages - Instructional $8,567,787 $9,183,184 $615,397 $13,028,296 $11,423,716 $13,028,296 $1,604,580

Salary and Wages - Acad. Support $464,310 $365,464 ($98,846) $216,254 $619,080 $216,254 ($402,826)

Salary and Wages - Stud. Svcs $1,317,917 $1,482,497 $164,580 $1,892,481 $1,757,223 $1,892,481 $135,258

Salary and Wages - Public Svc. $313,462 $405,327 $91,865 $493,346 $417,950 $493,346 $75,396

Salary and Wages - Maintenance $763,403 $774,985 $11,582 $1,041,986 $1,017,870 $1,041,986 $24,116

Salary and Wages - Inst. Support $2,271,666 $2,534,809 $263,143 $3,533,791 $3,028,888 $3,533,791 $504,903

Total Salary and Wages $13,698,546 $14,746,266 $1,047,720 $20,206,154 $18,264,728 $20,206,154 $1,941,426

Employee Benefits Actual Budgeted Variance

Projected 

Actual Budgeted Variance

Employee Benefits - Instructional $1,497,783 $1,555,860 $58,077 $2,188,558 $2,051,378 $2,188,558 $137,180

Employee Benefits - Acad. Support $92,969 $123,590 $30,621 $63,897 $74,099 $63,897 ($10,202)

Employee Benefits - Stud. Svcs $348,309 $427,687 $79,378 $574,909 $438,935 $574,909 $135,974

Employee Benefits - Public Svc. $51,503 $45,867 ($5,636) $62,870 $61,706 $62,870 $1,164

Employee Benefits - Maintenance $254,548 $288,639 $34,091 $376,366 $334,730 $376,366 $41,636

Employee Benefits - Inst. Support $796,200 $707,017 ($89,182) $824,367 $1,317,320 $824,367 ($492,953)

Total Employee Benefits $3,041,312 $3,148,660 $107,348 $4,090,967 $4,278,168 $4,090,967 ($187,201)

Lake Land College
FY2023 Salary, Wage & Benefits Detail

Year to Date FY23 Projections

FY2023 Budgeted

FY2023 Budgeted

Year to Date FY23 Projections

Board Book Page 41



Mar-23

Current YTD Actual Current YTD Budget Variance Previous YTD Annual Budget

Revenues:

Local Sources 1,727,416                    1,706,935                      20,482            1,824,287          1,720,000            

Bond Proceeds 15,159,895                  16,000,000                    (840,105)        16,000,000          

Loan Proceeds -                  

Investment Income 269,065                       269,065         (116,368)            

Total Revenues 17,156,376                  17,706,935                    (550,558)        1,707,919          17,720,000          

Expenditures:

Student Center Renovations : Buildi

Construction Proj : Site Improvemen 931,192                       7,955,110                      7,023,918      53,178               8,330,110            

PHS Projects : Site Improvements 448,432             

New Site: Sire Improvements 11,532                         (11,532)          1,000,000            

Other 16,117,744                  (16,117,744)  18,857               

Total Expenditures 17,060,468                  7,955,110                      (9,105,358)     520,468             9,330,110            

Excess of Revenues over

Expenditures & Transfers 95,909                            9,751,825                       (9,655,916)     1,187,451           8,389,890             

Operations & Maint Restricted--Fund 03

Board Book Page 42



Mar-23

Current YTD Actual Current YTD Budget Variance Previous YTD Annual Budget

Revenues:

General : Local Taxes 6,679,262                    6,548,749                      130,513      6,054,643         6,598,875            

General : Investment Income 9,211                           9,211          46                      

General : Transfer from Other Funds -              162,250               

Total Revenues 6,688,473                    6,548,749                      139,724      6,054,689         6,761,125            

Expenditures:

Work Cash Bonds : Debt Principal Pa -                                 -              -                    -                       

Work Cash Bonds : Interest on Debt -              0.01                   -                       

Work Cash Bonds : Other Fixed Charg -              -                    -                       

Funding Bonds : Debt Principal Paym 6,370,024                    6,370,000                      (24)              6,064,980         6,370,000            

Funding Bonds : Interest on Debt 272,545                       388,125                         115,580      422,046            388,125               

Funding Bonds : Other Fixed Charges 1,500                             1,500          600                    3,000                    

Funding Bonds : Bond Is 251,417                       (251,417)     -                    -                       

Administration : Intere -              -                    -                       

Total Expenditures 6,893,985                    6,759,625                      134,360      6,487,625         6,761,125            

Excess of Revenues over

Expenditures & Transfers (205,512)                      (210,876)                       5,365          (432,936)           -                       

Bond and Interest--Fund 04

Board Book Page 43



Mar-23

Current YTD Actual Current YTD Budget Variance Previous YTD Annual Budget

Revenues:

Ag Judging Activity Fees -                                   -                    -                      6,500                     

Ag Judging Transfer -                                   -                    -                      31,143                  

Auto Shop 15,500                            (15,500)            -                      15,500                  

Athletics -                                   -                    -                      890,791                

Fitness Center 34,439                           55,000                            (20,561)            32,765               55,000                  

Bookstore 638,953                         522,063                          116,890           653,618             696,084                

Print Shop 803,088                         535,000                          268,088           638,306             683,000                

Food Service 11,272                           5,700                              5,572                4,475                  7,600                     

College Farm 118,663                         130,000                          (11,337)            185,522             140,000                

Comm Choir -                                   -                    -                      5,100                     

Student Life 169,902                         -                                   169,902           -                      144,500                

WLKL Radio Activity fees -                                   -                    -                      1,100                     

Transfer for Tuition Waivers -                                   -                    161,749             515,000                

Total Revenues 1,776,316                     1,263,263                       513,054           1,676,434          3,191,318             

Expenditures:

Ag Judging 27,657                           34,643                            6,986                33,032               37,643                  

Auto Shop -                                 15,500                            15,500              -                      15,500                  

Athletics 662,988                         755,183                          92,195              485,798             876,291                

Fitness Center 46,827                           69,500                            22,673              58,239               69,500                  

Bookstore 647,480                         581,361                          (66,119)            633,859             694,100                

Print Shop 707,288                         504,852                          (202,436)          551,450             662,245                

Food Service 5,777                             5,810                              33                     5,968                  8,097                     

College Farm 91,133                           65,577                            (25,556)            36,788               86,254                  

Comm Choir -                                 3,850                              3,850                -                      5,100                     

Student Life 183,913                         289,821                          105,908           134,260             352,710                

WLKL Radio -                                 1,100                              1,100                -                      1,100                     

Tuition Waivers 524,817                         597,361                          72,545              599,911             625,000                

Total Expenditures 2,897,878                     2,924,557                       26,678             2,539,305          3,433,541             

Excess of Revenues over

Expenditures & Transfers (1,121,562)                    (1,661,294)                     539,732           (862,871)            (242,223)               

Auxillary Enterprise Fund--Fund 05

Board Book Page 44



Mar-23

Current YTD Actual Current YTD Budget Variance Previous YTD Annual Budget

Revenues:

Adult Ed 380,098                         390,683                          (10,585)              317,451              520,295                

Pathways 316,894                         175,311                          141,583             383,097              233,766                

Perkins 180,243                         321,002                          (140,759)            342,271              435,667                

WIOA 2,259,196                     2,568,215                       (309,019)            1,747,705          3,377,120             

College Work Study -                                 70,000                            (70,000)              -                      70,000                  

GAST 20,000                           50,000                            (30,000)              28,159                50,000                  

IL Cooperative Work Study 54,158                           50,000                            4,158                 44,352                50,000                  

IPRF Grant 26,679                           88,000                            (61,321)              19,609                88,000                  

Veterans Services 54,015                           1,060,000                       (1,005,985)        80,269                1,060,000             

ISAC MAP 1,495,002                     1,520,000                       (24,998)              495,474              1,520,000             

Department Of Education 4,512,393                     10,867,718                     (6,355,325)        3,809,228          10,867,718           

Direct loans 1,159,535                     2,068,000                       (908,465)            1,062,888          2,068,000             

Corrections 5,846,697                     10,051,058                     (4,204,361)        5,496,673          13,373,244           

CARES Funds-Students 2,422,506                     -                                   2,422,506          3,156,706          -                         

CARES Funds-Institutional 2,296,640                     -                                   2,296,640          2,796,392          -                         

Privately Funded Grant 1,166,926                     85,000                            1,081,926          202,315              97,100                  

TRIO SSS 181,892                         208,773                          (26,881)              134,747              286,323                

TRIO DC 213,640                         239,880                          (26,240)              199,473              320,160                

Total Revenues 22,586,515                   29,813,640                    (7,227,125)        20,316,808        34,417,393           

Expenditures:

Adult Ed 386,885                         390,683                          3,798                 310,794              520,295                

Pathways 274,799                         175,311                          (99,488)              241,771              233,766                

Perkins 243,819                         321,002                          77,183               375,408              435,667                

WIOA 2,457,141                     2,568,215                       111,074             2,069,820          3,377,120             

College Work Study 21,559                           70,000                            48,441               11,724                70,000                  

GAST -                                 50,000                            50,000               10,579                50,000                  

IL Cooperative Work Study 4,746                             50,000                            45,255               -                      50,000                  

IPRF Grant 10,708                           88,000                            77,292               11,003                88,000                  

Veterans Services 156,440                         1,060,000                       903,560             179,629              1,060,000             

ISAC MAP 1,575,028                     1,520,000                       (55,028)              928,624              1,520,000             

Department of Education 4,470,119                     10,867,718                     6,397,599          3,851,054          10,867,718           

Direct loans 1,150,864                     2,068,000                       917,136             1,074,661          2,068,000             

Corrections 6,018,569                     10,051,058                     4,032,489          3,910,712          13,373,244           

CARES Funds-Students 2,422,506                     -                                   (2,422,506)        3,109,917          -                         

CARES Funds-Institutional 2,358,069                     -                                   (2,358,069)        3,018,658          -                         

Privately Funded Grant 549,397                         85,000                            (464,397)            71,233                97,100                  

TRIO SSS 201,304                         208,773                          7,469                 151,264              286,323                

TRIO DC 232,438                         239,880                          7,442                 215,782              320,160                

Total Expenditures 22,534,391                   29,813,640                    7,279,249         19,542,633        34,417,393           

Excess of Revenues over

Expenditures & Transfers 52,124                           -                                  52,124               774,175             -                         

Restricted Purposes Fund--Fund 06

Board Book Page 45



Mar-23

Current YTD Actual Current YTD Budget Variance Previous YTD Annual Budget

Revenues:

Local Taxes 173,596                         173,671                           (74)                  75,794                175,000                 

Total Revenues 173,596                         173,671                           (74)                  75,794                175,000                 

Expenditures:

Admin Staff Ful 18,235                           18,136.67                        (98)                  17,460                25,489.38              

Support Staff F 11,327                           11,196.57                        (131)                10,774                15,735.72              

Medical Benefit 6,749                             7,138.80                          389                 6,484                  9,518.40                

Life Insurance 19                                   20.70                               1                      19                        27.60                     

Audit Services 47,800                           47,800.00                        -                  46,900                47,800.00              

Printing -                                  500.00                             500                 -                      500.00                   

Total Expenditures 84,131                           84,793                             662                 81,636                99,071                   

Excess of Revenues over

Expenditures & Transfers 89,466                           88,878                             588                 (5,842)                 75,929                   

Audit Fund--Fund 11

Board Book Page 46



Mar-23

Current YTD Actual Current YTD Budget Variance Previous YTD Annual Budget

Revenues:

Local Taxes 2,366,493                       2,315,278                         51,215                 2,241,962              2,333,000               

Misc Income -                                   -                       

Total Revenues 2,366,493                       2,315,278                         51,215                 2,241,962             2,333,000               

Expenditures:

Student Services 61,696                             79,963                              (18,267)                69,136                   105,160                  

Operations and Maintenance 141,979                           156,474                            (14,495)                140,292                 216,485                  

Police Dept 439,028                           237,983                            201,044               376,183                 534,945                  

Institutional Support 222,572                           400,309                            (177,737)              104,197                 330,631                  

Fixed Charges-ins 540,101                           502,905                            37,195                 625,476                 841,655                  

Total Expenditures 1,405,374                       1,377,634                         (27,740)                1,315,285             2,028,876               

Excess of Revenues over

Expenditures & Transfers 961,119                          937,644                            23,475                 926,677                 304,124                  

Tort Fund--Fund 12

Board Book Page 47



 

 

 
TO: 

Board of Trustees 
Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

FROM: Dustha Wahls, Director of Human Resources 

CC: Greg Nuxoll, Vice-President for Business Services 

DATE: April 27, 2023 

RE: Continued Employment of Grant Funded Employees 
  

I respectfully request the Lake Land College Board of Trustees approve the sending of honorable 
termination notices to all permanently state and/or federally grant-funded (full-time and part-time) 
employees of Lake Land College. When and if contracts are received for these grants, I also request the 
authorization to rescind these termination notices and reemploy affected personnel. Although this is a 
practice we regret having to enact, we feel it is in the College's best interest in the event the anticipated 
grant funds are not received.   
 

Board Book Page 48



 

 

 
TO: Lake Land College Board of Trustees 

FROM: Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

DATE: May 3, 2023 

RE: College-Wide Standing Committees FY 2024 
  

I respectfully request the Lake Land College Board of Trustees approve the attached list of FY 
2024 College-Wide Standing Committees. This is being presented per Board Policy 02.09 
which states that the College President shall annually recommend to the Board the list of 
standing committees, their purposes and their membership composition. I submit this 
recommendation following a thorough review of each committee’s prior year accomplishments 
and validating the on-going need for each committee included on the recommended list.  

Upon approval by the Board, the administration will begin the process of confirming individuals 
to serve in the various positions as identified by job position for each committee. This process 
will also include confirmation of individuals to serve on the College’s task forces and review 
boards. Selection of appropriate committee, task force and review board members will be 
conducted in consultation with each bargaining unit as outlined in their respective collective 
bargaining agreements.  

 

Attachment 

 

Board Book Page 49



UPDATED 5/3/23 1 

 

Standing Committees: 
Appointed to advise, make proposals, and 
when applicable, render decisions 
concerning educational needs and policy 
adherence of the institution. Committees 
noted with an * are referenced for faculty 
membership representation in the faculty 
association collective bargaining 
agreement. Unless otherwise noted, faculty 
appointments may include instructional or 
academic support faculty. 

 
Academic and Enrollment Calendar 
Committee 
Purpose: Develop and recommend to the 
College President the College academic 
calendar. Establish enrollment calendars. 
Chair: VP for Student Services  
Committee Assistant: Administrative 
Assistant to VP for Student Services 
Members: 
Director of Marketing & Public Relations  
Comptroller  
Academic Scheduling Coordinator 
Academic Counselor/Coordinator for 
Orientation 
Dean of Academic Operations 
Chief Information Officer 
Coordinator of Student Communications & 
Initiatives 
Dean of Admissions Services  
Financial Aid Representative 
Manager of Bookstore and Textbook Rentals  
One Teaching Faculty 
One Career Division Chair  
One Transfer Division Chair 
VP for Academic Services 
Sponsor: VP for Student Services 
 
Academic Council Committee* 
Purpose: To facilitate ongoing dialogue 
between full-time faculty and the 
Administration/Board of Trustees. 
Co-Chair: VP for Academic Services and 
One Faculty to be voted on by faculty at first 
meeting. 

Committee Assistant: Administrative 
Assistant to VP for Academic Services 
Members: 
VP for Academic Services 
*One academic support faculty member 
elected by academic support faculty (7) 
*One teaching faculty member elected from 
each academic division (1) 
Agriculture:  
Allied Health:  
Business:  
Humanities:  
Math/Science:  
Non-teaching:  
Social Science:  
Technology:  
At least two administrators: VP for Business 
Services & VP for Student Services 
Director of Human Resources  
Dean of Academic Operations 
Faculty appointments are for three-year 
rotating terms 
*Faculty Association President 
Sponsor: VP for Academic Services 

 
Academic Standards Committee 
Purpose: Establish and review academic 
standards and requirements and recommend 
related changes in Board Policy to the 
College President. 
Chair: VP for Student Services 
Committee Assistant: Administrative 
Assistant to VP for Student Services 
Members: 
Dean of Admission Services 
Director of Enrollment Services 
One Academic Counselor 
One Division Chair 
Two Faculty  
Student selected by Student Government 
Association 
Sponsor: VP for Student Services 
(DC and faculty appointments are three-year 
terms) 

 
 
 

Board Book Page 50



UPDATED 5/3/23 2 

 

Advising Committee 
Purpose: Develop, implement, and assess 
advising practices that promote retention, 
persistence, and completion.  
Chair: Academic Counselor/Coordinator of 
Advising 
Committee Assistant: Counseling Services 
Specialist 
Members: 
One to two Teaching Faculty from each 
division:  
Allied Health 
Agriculture 
Business 
Humanities 
Technology 
Math/Science 
Social Science 
Two Academic Counselors 
Two students selected by Student 
Government Association 
Sponsor: VP for Student Services 

 
Assessment Committee 
Purpose: Support continuous improvement by 
leading College-wide participation and 
integration of assessment activities and results.    
Chair: Director of Assessment & Program 
Review 
Committee Assistant: Executive Assistant to 
the President’s Office 
Members: 
One Administrator 
One Business Services Staff 
One Student Services Staff 
One Academic Services Staff 
Director of Data Analytics 
Director of Institutional Research and Reporting 
One Teaching Faculty from each division: 
Allied Health 
Agriculture 
Business 
Humanities 
Technology 
Math/Science 
Social Science 
Sponsor: VP for Academic Services 

Community and College Services Awareness 
Committee 
Purpose: Raising awareness of information on 
resources within the college and external agency 
partners committed to assisting all students with a 
focus on underrepresented populations and at-
risk students. Through information sharing and 
networking, our vision is to keep updated and 
accurate communication to use in serving 
students as well as to collaborate on how to 
overall best serve any current or future students 
in need of assistance. 
Chair: Dean of Workforce Development and 
Community Education 
Members: Director of Adult and Alternative 
Education 
Adult Education Transition Coordinator 
Director of Student Life 
Director of TRiO 
Community Outreach Coordinator 
Academic Counselor  
VP for Student Services 
Chief of Staff 
Financial Aid representative 
Perkins Specialist 
Paraprofessional 
Sponsor: VP for Student Services 
 
Curriculum Committee  
Purpose: Foster innovative course, credential, 
and program offerings. Facilitate and recommend 
the addition, revision or elimination of courses, 
credentials, and programs.   
Chair: VP for Academic Services 
Committee Assistant: Administrative Assistant 
to VP for Academic Services 
Members: 
Dean of Academic Operations 
Dean of Admission Services 
Director of Assessment & Program Review  
Director of Data Analytics 
Director of Institutional Research and Reporting 
Director of Library Services 
Associate Dean of Enrollment 
All Division Chairs 
Academic Scheduling Coordinator 

Board Book Page 51



UPDATED 5/3/23 3 

 

One Member from Workforce Solutions and 
Community Ed. 
One Admissions and Records Staff 
One Academic Counselor 
One Career Faculty 
One Transfer Faculty  
Two students selected by the Student 
Government Association 
Sponsor: VP for Academic Services 
 
Developmental Education Committee 
Purpose: Improve student retention, persistence, 
and completion through communication and 
integration of developmental education best 
practices and continuous improvement strategies.  
Chair: Division Chair for Math/Science or 
Humanities 
Committee Assistant: Administrative Assistant 
to the current Chair 
Members: 
Director of Data Analytics 
Director Student Success Service 
Director of Institutional Research and Reporting 
Developmental Reading/Writing Instructor 
Developmental Math Coordinator 
Developmental Math Instructor 
Director of Adult and Alternative Education 
Counselor/Retention Coordinator 
Counselor for Student Accommodations 
Director of TRIO SSS 
Division Chairs for Mathematics and Humanities 
Student identified by Director Student Success 
Service 
Sponsor: VP for Academic Services 
 
Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Belonging 
Education Committee (DEIB) 
Purpose: Provide leadership to educate, 
advocate and celebrate diversity to facilitate an 
inclusive environment. 
Chair: Director of Student Success Services 
Committee Assistant: Paraprofessional on the 
Committee 
Members: 
Director of Student Life 
Coordinator of International Studies Program 

Coordinator of Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and 
Belonging 
Counselor for Student Accommodations 
Trio Student Support Services Advisor 
One Human Resources Staff 
One Supervisory/Support Staff 
One Media and Public Relations Staff 
One Paraprofessional 
One Custodial 
Five Faculty Members 
One Adjunct Faculty Member 
Two students selected by the Student 
Government Association. 
Sponsor: VP for Student Services 
(One member also serves on Employee 
Development Committee) 
 
Employee Appreciation and Engagement 
Committee 
Purpose: The committee is charged with hosting 
ad hoc appreciation and engagement events and 
developing methods to show appreciation and 
engagement that foster a sense of belonging. The 
committee works in conjunction with the 
Employee College Events and Recognition 
Committee.  
Chair: Director of Human Resources 
Committee Assistant: TBD 
Members: 
Membership by volunteer 
Preferred one person from each work group to 
represent inclusivity:  
One Paraprofessional 
One Support-Staff 
One Faculty member 
One Custodial member 
New staff member 
Seasoned staff member 
Co-Sponsors: VP for Business Services and 
President 
 
Employee College Events and Recognition 
Committee 
Purpose: Coordinates the official annual college 
wide events. Committee members provide 
support to the Employee Appreciation and 

Board Book Page 52



UPDATED 5/3/23 4 

 

Engagement Committee and reward employees 
demonstrating the College’s vision and values. 
Chair: Human Resources Staff Member 
Committee Assistant: TBD 
Members: 
One Marketing & Public Relations  
One Audio-Visual Services  
One Supervisory/Support 
One Physical Plant  
One Human Resources  
One Adjunct Faculty  
One Faculty 
One Paraprofessional 
Sponsor: VP for Business Services and 
President 
 
Emergency Operations Center Policy Group 
Committee (EOC) (Formerly NIMS) 
Purpose: Ensure the college is prepared to 
respond to critical incidents. Maximize the safety 
and well-being of students, employees and 
visitors by executing the appropriate response to 
mitigate the crisis. 
Chair: Police Sergeant & Coordinator for 
Emergency Mgt. Response & Training  
Committee Assistant: Executive Assistant to the 
President’s Office 
Members:  
Chief of Police 
Chief of Staff 
Vice President for Academic Services 
Vice President for Business Services 
Vice President for Student Services 
Dean for Workforce Solutions and Community 
Education 
Director of Marketing and Public Relations 
Communications Engagement Coordinator 
Chief Information Officer 
Director of Human Resources 
Director of Physical Plant 
Webmaster 
Sponsor: President 
 
Employee Development Committee* 
Purpose: Plan the three scheduled faculty and 
staff development days (per academic year).  
Chair: Training & Development Coordinator  

Committee Assistant: Sr. Human Resources 
Generalist  
Members: 
*Five faculty members 
One Paraprofessional 
Two Supervisory/Support Staff 
One Human Resources Staff 
Sponsor: VP for Business Services 
(One member also serves on Inclusion and 
Diversity Education Committee) 

 
Faculty Sabbatical Leave Committee* 
Purpose: Evaluate and make 
recommendations regarding requests for 
faculty sabbatical leaves. 
Chair: VP for Academic Services 
Committee Assistant: Administrative 
Assistant to VP for Academic Services 
Members: 
*One teaching faculty from each division 
*One Non-teaching faculty 
VP for Student Services 
Sponsor: VP for Academic Services (Faculty 
appointments are for three-year rotating 
terms.) 

 
General Education Committee 
Purpose: Establish and promote the general 
education philosophy and learning goals. 
Recommend strategies for integration and 
assessment of general education and 
learning goals within the college curriculum.  
Chair: Transfer Faculty Member (3 year 
term) 
Committee Assistant: Administrative 
Assistant to the current Chair 
Members: 
Director of Assessment & Program Review 
Director of Data Analytics 
Faculty members should represent all 
academic divisions -  
Five Transfer Faculty  
Three Career faculty including Chair 
Two non-teaching Faculty 
Student selected by Student Government 
Association 
Sponsor: VP for Academic Services 

Board Book Page 53



UPDATED 5/3/23 5 

 

 
Health Insurance Committee* 
Purpose: Provide annual evaluation and 
recommendations regarding College 
programs for employee wellness and health 
insurance. 
Chair: VP for Business Services 
Committee Assistant: Administrative 
Assistant to VP for Business Services 
Members: 
College Nurse 
Three Administrators 
*Three Faculty (Teaching or Non-Teaching) 
One Paraprofessional 
One Custodial 
Two Supervisory/Support  
Sr. Human Resources Generalist and 
College Compliance Coordinator 
Sponsor: VP for Business Services 

 
Information Technology Committee  
Purpose: Review, evaluate, and prioritize 
information technology projects and make 
recommendations to the Cabinet for final 
approval. Provide guidance to technology 
project requesters for all areas of the 
College. 
Chair: Chief Information Officer  
Committee Assistant: Administrative 
Assistant to the VP of Business Services 
Members: 
Coordinator of Student Communications & 
Initiatives 
Dean of Admission Services 
Chair for Counseling 
Director of Enterprise Applications 
Director of Financial Aid & Veteran Services 
Comptroller 
Director of Human Resources 
Dean of Academic Operations 
Director of Dual Credit 
Director of Marketing & Public Relations 
Director of Institutional Research and 
Reporting 
One Faculty Member 
One Member from Workforce Solutions and 
Community Ed. 

Sponsor: VP for Business Services 
 
Innovation Committee* 
Purpose: Evaluates faculty requests for 
funding to support innovation in the 
classroom, professional development 
experiences and initiatives that support areas 
of focus to move the college forward. 
Chair: VP for Academic Services 
Committee Assistant: Administrative 
Assistant to VP for Academic Services 
Members: 
Three Faculty Members (3 year rotating 
terms) 
Three Staff/Administrators 
Sponsor: VP for Academic Services 
 
Occupational Safety Committee 
Purpose: Promote occupational safety and 
ensure that the College is in compliance with 
related state and federal occupational safety 
regulations. 
Chair: Sr. Human Resources Generalist and 
College Compliance Coordinator 
Committee Assistant: Employment 
Specialist 
Members: 
College Nurse 
Director of Physical Plant Operations 
One Custodial Staff 
One Paraprofessional 
Two Faculty 
One Administrator/Supervisory 
Sponsor: VP for Business Services 
 
 
 
Strategic Planning Committee 
Purpose: Assist with facilitating the 
development and maintenance of the 
College’s strategic plan. Serve as a resource 
to the President’s Cabinet on issues related 
to the strategic plan. Be champions for the 
planning process and aid in communicating 
the process with the College community. 
Chair: Chief of Staff  

Board Book Page 54



UPDATED 5/3/23 6 

 

Committee Assistant: Executive Assistant 
to the President’s Office 
Members:  
Vice President for Academic Services  
Chief Information Officer 
Associate Dean of Enrollment 
Director of Institutional Research and 
Reporting  
Director of Data Analytics 
Director of Assessment & Program Review 
One Faculty Association 
One Paraprofessional 
One Custodial 
Two Support (Business Services and 
Student Services) 
One Career Tech Faculty 
One Transfer Faculty 
Four Appointed Team Members (Academic 
Services, Student Services, Business 
Services, and Workforce Solutions and 
Community Education) 
Sponsor: President 
 
Training/Retraining Committee* 
Purpose: Discuss problem areas and 
determine faculty members who will be 
affected when there is retrenchment at the 
College.   
Chair: VP for Academic Services 
Committee Assistant: Administrative 
Assistant to the VP for Academic Services 
Members: 
Membership is appointed as needed. 
Sponsor: VP for Academic Services 

 

Board Book Page 55



 
 
 

Memo 

 
To:  Dr. Josh Bullock, President 
 
From:  Greg Nuxoll, Vice President for Business Services 
 
Date:  April 28, 2023 
 
Re:  Approval of Bid for Preventive Maintenance and Air Filter Replacement 
 
Preventive maintenance is an important part of facilities management, and is essential for the 
continued performance and safety of the college's heating, air-conditioning and ventilation 
equipment, and helps to improve equipment life and avoid unplanned maintenance costs. 
 
Changing air filters provides several benefits in addition to maintaining healthy air quality, such as 
extending the life of the HVAC units, and helping to keep energy costs down. 
 
The College recently solicited bids for Preventive Maintenance and Air Filter Replacement.  Work will 
include cleaning of equipment, providing and installation of filters, parts, fittings, and any other 
accessories required to provide complete Mechanical Equipment Preventive Maintenance and Air 
Filter Replacement for the college HVAC systems.  The Base Bid is for (4) four complete filter 
changes and the accompanying preventive maintenance. 
 
For the bidding process, we advertised in major daily in-district newspapers and on the College’s 
Facilities website, and mailed the specifications to area contractors.  A total of three bids were 
received.  Below is a listing of the bids that were received: 
 
Name      Total Bid 
Mechanical, Inc.    $42,452.91 
dba Helm Service 
Champaign, Illinois 
 
Entec Services     $45,900.00 
Mattoon, Illinois 
 
Sycamore Engineering   $66,886.00 
Terre Haute, Indiana 
     
 
Based on the bids received, it is my recommendation that we award this bid to Helm Service of 
Champaign, Illinois for the Preventive Maintenance and Air Filter Replacement.   
 
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or need any further clarification.     

Board Book Page 56



Total Bid    

 $                         42,452.91 

 $                         45,900.00   

 $                         66,886.00   

 

 

Lake Land College Preventive Maintenance & Air Filter
Replacement Bid Tab
Project No. 2023‐006

            BID TABULATION

Lake Land College
5001 Lake Land Boulevard

Mattoon, Illinois 61938

BID DATE:  April 28, 2023 ‐ 1:00 PM

Sycamore Engineering
Terre Haute, Indiana

Entec Services
Mattoon, Illinois

CONTRACTOR

Mechanical, Inc.
dba Helm Service
Champaign, Illinois

Board Book Page 57



 

 

 
TO: Dr. Josh Bullock, President 

FROM: Greg Nuxoll, Vice President for Business Services 

CC:  

DATE: April 27, 2023 

RE: Approval of Insurance Consulting Contract  
  

 
Since 2018, the College has contracted with Dimond Bros. LLC of Mattoon, IL as an insurance consultant.  

all College 
insurance matters except health insurance:  Risk management services, Insurance marketing services, 
Claims management services, Account management services and Stewardship reporting services.  
 

current three-year contact with Dimond Bros. paid Dimond Bros. $25,000 annually and it 
expires June 30, 2023.   
 
Dimond Bros. has been a trusted partner in working through insurance matters.   They were especially 
helpful in dealing with the outside insurance carrier after the fire at Neal Hall in April 2020.  Dimond Bros. 
has significant contacts in the insurance agency and has been able to bring multiple insurance companies 
to the College to secure the best insurance pricing possible.  
 
The College would like to continue its working relationship with Dimond Bros. in renewing the insurance 
consulting agreement at that the same pricing of the expiring contract at $25,000 annually or $75,000 
over three years.   The new contract would be in effect from July 1, 2023 to July 1, 2026.    
 
I respectfully request the Board approve the insurance consulting contract with Dimond Bros. Insurance, 
LLC.  

Board Book Page 58



Board Book Page 59



Board Book Page 60



Board Book Page 61



Board Book Page 62



Board Book Page 63



Board Book Page 64



Board Book Page 65



Board Book Page 66



LAKE LAND COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

HUMAN RESOURCES REPORT 
May 8th, 2023 

  
The following employees are recommended for FMLA leave.  Board policy 
05.04.12. 
 
Niemerg, Kellie  8/11/23-11/3/23 
Pender, Amber  4/23/23-10/1/23 Intermittent 
Pender, Diane  4/28/23-4/28/24 Intermittent 
 
The following employee has requested a General Leave of Absence/ Board 
policy 05.04.14  
 
Taylor, Debra        4/20/23-5/22/23 
  
The following positions have been recommended by the Lake Land College 
President’s Cabinet 
 
Facilities Planning Manager        Level 15 
 
Additional Appointments 
  The following employees are recommended for additional appointments 
      Position Effective Date 
Part-time 
Carter, Natashia Newspaper Editor - Student Newspaper 4/10/23  
  Primary Position Fitness Center Specialist 
New Hire-Employees 
The following employees are recommended for hire 
      Position Effective Date 
 Unpaid Volunteer 
Carpenter, Cassandra Dual Credit Instructor 4/28/23 
Schertz, Jacqueline Lake Land College Student Trustee 4/15/23 
 
Full-time 
Dickens-Montgomery, Amanda PATH Grant Project Manager 7/10/23 

Ethridge, Nicole Administrative Asst to Admissions & Records 5/17/23 
Martin, Shelly Community & Professional Programs Coord 5/22/23 
Olarge, Annabelle Correctional Office Assistant 4/19/23 
Scherer, Jacob Correctional Office Assistant 4/19/23 
Wilkinson, Jordan Apprenticeship Coordinator 5/15/23 
Williams, Tiffany Correctional Horticulture Instructor 4/17/23 
Zumwalt, Macie Correctional Office Assistant 4/17/23 
 
 Full-time Tenure Track 
Kessler, Christian Agronomy Instructor and Farm Manager 8/18/23 
Sumitro, Richard Mathematics Instructor 8/18/23 

Board Book Page 67



Part-time 
Gillespie, Alex Adjunct Faculty Social Science Division 8/21/23 
Hoene, Brooke Dual Credit Coordinator 4/27/23 
Jones, Cory Dual Credit Coordinator 2/27/23 
Kasera, Noella Bookstore Rush Worker 5/4/23 
Omari, Marjolaine Bookstore Rush Worker 5/4/23 
Tshabu, Espadie Bookstore Rush Worker 5/4/23 
  
 Part-time Grant Funded 
Adams, Molly Agriculture Education Intern 5/8/23 
Cable, Elizabeth Agriculture Education Intern 5/8/23 
Douglas, Christina Agriculture Education Intern 5/8/23 
Dowers, Camden Agriculture Education Intern 5/8/23 
Horstmeyer, Paige Agriculture Education Intern 5/8/23 
Radke, Olivia Agriculture Education Intern 5/8/23 
 
Work Study 
Perkins, Alexandria College Work Study - Stud Success Service 4/18/23 
 
Terminations/Resignations 
  The following employees are terminating employment 
      Position Effective Date 
Full-time 
Bonham, Beau Daniel Correctional Food Service Instructor 3/31/23 
Bowen, Mercury Communications Engagement Coordinator 5/12/23 
McGee, Patrick Correctional Career Technology Instructor 4/14/23 
Passmore, Steven Correctional Automotive Technology Instructor 4/26/23 
Roberts, Michael Correctional Commercial Cooking Instructor 4/6/23 
 
Part-time 
Beltran, Mariah Trio Destination College Intern 12/8/22 
Bond, Katheranne Admissions and Records Data Entry Assistant 4/28/23 
Brock, Reese Human Resources Assistant 11/9/22 
Kelly, Maggie Lake Land College Student Trustee 4/14/23 
Smith, Nicole Human Resources Assistant 4/20/23 
 
Transfers/Promotions 
  The following employee is recommended for a change in position 
      Position Effective Date 
Full-time 
Gillenwater, Matthew Programmer Analyst 5/15/23 
  Transferring from Web Programmer 
Hunt, Rick Technical Training Coordinator 5/15/23 
  Transferring from Technical Training Specialist 
Wright, Sarah Business Instr/Coordinator Office Prof-Medical 8/18/23 
  Transferring from Adjunct Faculty Business 

Board Book Page 68


	TITLEPG.TLE Regular meeting with Growth Tree graphic
	Table of Contents May 2023 Board Book
	041023 Minutes
	050123 Minutes
	2022 Nav Awards
	Memo for May BOT Proposed policy changes 2023
	061801
	061601
	070102
	Calendar of Events 2023
	FY2023- March 2023 Financials Memo - jah
	TO:
	FROM:
	DATE:
	RE:

	March 2023 MDA - Other Funds - May 2023 Board Meeting - jah
	Financials March 2023  Board report
	FY24 Grant Funded Employee Memo
	College Committees memo 2023
	FY 24 Standing Committees excluding names
	PM Air Filter Bid Packet
	Preventive Maintenance and Air Filter Replacement Bid Memo
	2023-006 Preventive Maintenance Air Filter Replacement Bid Tab

	Board Memo - Approval of Insurance Consulting Contract with Dimond Bros_
	Dimond Bros and LLC Service Agreement 23-26
	May 8 2023 Human Resources Board Report



